Oregon Racing Commission
P.O. Box 366

Gresham, OR 97030
ORC.info@orc.oregon.gov
971-673-0213 Fax
WWWw.oregon.gov/racing

e _
’Q‘g OREGON RACING
= COMMISSION

COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA
Saturday, September 20, 2025
1:30 p.m.

The Oregon Racing Commission will meet at 1:30 pm on Saturday, September 20, 2025. The
meeting will be held in person at the Arts and Craft Building located at 1451 Fairgrounds
Road, Grants Pass, OR 97528 and remotely via Microsoft Teams videoconference. You may join
the meeting by clicking on the link below, or by calling in. Please be aware if you call in, your
phone number will appear as your ID.

Topic: ORC's September Regular Commission Meeting
Time: September 20, 2025, 01:30 PM Pacific Time (US and Canada)

Join the meeting now
Meeting ID: 286 212 326 403 5
Passcode: LU2Ze6vW

If you are unable to access this session through a computer, please dial: 1-503-446-4951
Phone conference ID: 103 860 419#

A request for an interpreter or other accommodation for persons with disabilities should be made at least
48 hours before the meeting to Commission staff at:503-853-5927 or by email at
ORC.info@orc.oregon.gov. This proposed agenda is subject to last-minute changes without prior notice.

AGENDA ITEMS

ROLL CALL — Karen Parkman, Director of Administration:

APPROVALS (need to conduct a vote):
1) Meeting Agenda — Chair Doherty
2) August Minutes — Chair Doherty

OLD BUSINESS:
3) Director’s Report — Director Winn
4) Budget update

Page 1 0of 2


https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_YzEzNjA0NWItODM4OS00NzMxLTlmYTktYzQwNzU3YWQ2NGYz%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22aa3f6932-fa7c-47b4-a0ce-a598cad161cf%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22d9983e8c-d2f5-4394-9bf1-640c7130675a%22%7d

5) Best practices and strategic planning report
6) Headcheck Health program - Chris Montecino, Chief Investigator (Forwarded from August
agenda)

NEW BUSINESS:
7) Fair meet reports:

a. Union

b. SOHRA

c. Prineville

d. Tillamook
8) Discussion on OAR 462-140-0130(18) — Race Meet Licensee (Conflict of Interest)
9) Discussion and Possible approval to begin rule making for:

a) 462-200-0360 Who needs to be licensed at an OTB

10) Review Key Performance Indicators from FY 2025/Final review of KPMs.

PUBLIC COMMENT:

CONTESTED CASES:

11) Steward’s Ruling referral to the Oregon Racing Commission per ORS 462-405
a. Juan Leon
b. Mariles-Santos, Ricardo

The Commission will now leave the public meeting pursuant to ORS 192.690(1)(b) to deliberate
on these contested cases

EXECUTIVE SESSION
None.

CONFIRMATION OF NEXT COMMISSION MEETING:
The next commission meeting is scheduled for Thursday, October 16, 2025, at 1:30 P.M. remotely
via Microsoft Teams.

ADJOURNMENT:
Movement to adjourn.

At any time during the public session, the Commission may go into executive session to consider
information or records exempt from disclosure pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(f), ORS 192.345(2),
OAR 462-220-0070 regarding trade secrets; and/or ORS 192.660(2) (f) and ORS 192.355(9) to
consult with counsel concerning written legal advice; and/or ORS 192.660(2)(h) to discuss its
legal rights and duties regarding current litigation, or litigation likely to be filed. The
Commission may also elect to deliberate on pending contested cases pursuant to ORS
192.690(1). Additional items may be placed on the agenda after the general mailing of the
agenda. Calls may be made to the Commission office the week of the meeting to inquire about

additions.
Page 2 of 2



e _
H OREGON RACING
- cCoOMMISSION

Minutes
Oregon Racing Commission
August 21, 2025

Meeting Detail
The Oregon Racing Commission (ORC) met at 1:30 PM on Thursday, August 21%, 2025, via
Microsoft Teams videoconference.

Call to Order, Roll Call and Mission Statement:
Chair Margaret Doherty called the meeting to order at 1:30 PM, and Karen Parkman conducted
roll call.

In Attendance:

Commissioners: Chair Margaret Doherty, Vice Chair Quinn Berry, Commissioners Harvey Stein,
DVM, and Lindsay Fowler.

Staff: Connie Winn, Executive Director; Karen Parkman, Director of Administration, Kelly Routt,
Assistant Attorney General (AAG)

Excused: None

APPROVAL
Meeting Agenda
Action: Approve August meeting agenda.
Moved by: Commissioner Fowler
Second: Commissioner Stein
Vote: Commissioners voted AYE, and the motion was carried unanimously (4:0).

Meeting Minutes
May 2025
Action: Approve May 2025 meeting minutes.
Moved by: Commissioner Stein
Second: Commissioner Fowler
Vote: Commissioners voted AYE, and the motion was carried unanimously (4:0).

OLD BUSINESS

Executive Director’s Report — Director Winn:

Executive Director Winn welcomed staff member Maleah Thom on limited hours while on family
leave for the birth of a new baby. She requested all correspondence be directed through Karen
Parkman during the next 2 months while Maleah is working on a limited schedule.

Page 1 of 7



Director Winn reported that the Eastern Oregon Livestock Show had a successful meet with great
weather and strong attendance. The Racing Testing Laboratory, stationed in Kentucky, conducted
an inspection of Grants Pass Downs prior to the Southern Oregon Racing Association (SORA)
meet. Grants Pass Downs also hosted the Racing Officials Accreditation Program which garnered
national and international participation. Four ORC staff members and two commissioners also
attended. Commissioner Fowler also participated in media coverage. The instructors were highly
competent, and Grants Pass Downs received high praise. She thanked Karen Parkman for her role
in hospitality and Micah Lloyd for providing IT support for the program.

The SORA race meet was very successful. At Crooked River Roundup in Prineville the races ran
efficiently with favorable weather conditions.

At Tillamook County Fair the new stalls were well received. Unfortunately, inclement weather
forced 6 out of 8 raced to be cancelled on Day 1, but all were made up over subsequent days.
Strong volunteer effort ensured full race cards during the meet.

Director Winn announced the departure of Veterinary Assistant Victoria Flores, who will be
attending veterinary school in Iowa. Madeline Foy has joined the Test Barn staff as Victoria’s
replacement and intends to attend vet school in the future. Past commissioner Dr. Palmer will be
the primary onsite veterinarian for the fall. Dr. Lombard will continue providing remote support
as well. The process of finding a full-time vet is still underway, however, the State has agreed to
create a new classification for the position.

Director Winn reported that new statutes will require rulemaking on license fees, fines, and
wagering. Any changes to individual licenses cannot go into effect until the new database is fully
operational. The Legislatively Adopted Budget (LAB) was signed and final approval received.
The LAB is being assembled for submission to Legislative Fiscal Office, and a summary will be
provided to the commission at the September meeting.

Implementation of the new database is progressing, with the first phase of testing underway.

NEW BUSINESS

Amplify Presentation — Annise Montplaisir

Annise Montplaisir, Executive Director of Amplify Horse Racing, presented on the national youth
engagement program Amplify. Amplify was launched in 2020 to serve as the youth education arm
of the Thoroughbred industry by connecting young people to horse racing.

Chair Doherty suggested Amplify present to state legislative committees on agriculture and
education. Commissioner Stein inquired about partnership opportunities with companies such as
FanDuel or NYRA Bets to produce a commercial or segment on their platforms. All

Page 2 of 7



commissioners agreed that youth engagement is critical to the long-term sustainability of horse
racing in Oregon and thanked Annise for her presentation.

Review and possible adoption of the following rule amendments:

A. OAR 462-120-0055 with hearing- Defines the requirements for license renewal
with background checks
Non substantive changes to clean up the language.

B. OAR 462-220-0040 (6)(7) - Clarifies language and updates payment cap schedule
for ADWs

C. OAR 462-220-0030 -Simplifies application submission and changes length of time
that a license is valid

D. OAR 462-210-0010 (15) — Adds definition of Parlay

Action: Approval to adopt the amendments for OAR 462-120-0055, OAR 462-220-0040
(6)(7), OAR 462-2200-0030, and OAR 462-210-0010 (15).

Moved by: Commissioner Fowler

Second: Commissioner Stein

Vote: Commissioners voted AYE, and the motion was carried unanimously (4:0)

Discussion and possible approval to file emergency rule:

A. OAR 462-150-0010 (5)(a) Workouts; Exercise; Schooling

Director Winn explained that the Tillamook to Grants Pass scheduling gap creates compliance
issues with the 30-day workout rule. She proposed a temporary extension to 45 days, which
aligns with and Quarter Horse standards

Action: Approval of filing temporary rule for OAR 462-150-0010 (5)(a).
Moved by: Commissioner Fowler

Second: Commissioner Stein

Vote: Commissioners voted AYE, and the motion was carried unanimously (4:0)

Discussion and possible approval to begin the rulemaking process: - Micah Lloyd & Connie

Winn

A. OAR 462-220-0030 Daily Fees — Online Wagering

B.

Alines with legislative update, updating daily operation fees from $200 to $225.

OAR 462-140-0125 Placing Test Wagers

Per recent legislation, allows official staff member (Micah Lloyd) to place test wagers as
part of auditing duties.

OAR 462-120-0050 License Application Procedures; Requirements for Corporations
and Partnerships; Stable/Assumed Name

Updates licensing fees and positions into tiers, accounting for a 2-year license.

D. OAR 462-160-0130 (4) Non-Steroid Anti-Inflammatory Drugs -discussion

Page 3 of 7



Director Winn explained recent concerns with the rule requiring a 48-hour withdrawal
time for NSAIDs. While the rule changed from 24 to 48 hours, the enforcement threshold
(lab test levels) was not adjusted. Dr. Lombard reported that approximately 25% of
horsemen administering closer to race time than allowed, creating potential fairness and
enforcement issues.

Dr. Lombard clarified that lab tests only prove levels, not timing, limiting the
Commission’s ability to enforce the 48-hour requirement. Commissioner Stein noted this
puts compliant trainers at a disadvantage. Commissioner Fowler raised legal concerns
about whether an emergency rule would meet the required justification standard. DOJ
Counsel Kelly Routt advised that temporary/emergency rules require showing “serious
prejudice” if not enacted, and failure to meet that standard could invalidate the rule if
challenged.

Action: Approval of the rule making process for OAR 462-160-0130 (4).
Moved by: Commissioner Fowler

Second: Commissioner Berry

Vote: Commissioners voted AYE, and the motion was carried unanimously (4:0)

Action: Approval of the rule making process for OAR 462-220-0030.

Moved by: Commissioner Fowler

Second: Commissioner Berry

Vote: Commissioners voted AYE, and the motion was carried unanimously (4:0)

Action: Approval of the rule making process for OAR 462-140-0125.

Moved by: Commissioner Fowler

Second: Commissioner Stein

Vote: Commissioners voted AYE, and the motion was carried unanimously (4:0)

Action: Approval of the rule making process for OAR 462-120-0050.

Moved by: Commissioner Fowler

Second: Commissioner Berry

Vote: Commissioners voted AYE, and the motion was carried unanimously (4:0)

ORC Strategic Plan Update — Director Winn

Director Winn reported that the Strategic Plan was initially launched with an updated mission and
vision statement, which the Commission has already approved. Most of the current updates focus
on the progress of ongoing projects, which include:

Assisting with passage of statutes
Revamping rules and policies

Facilitate online wagering forums
Implementing the new licensing database
Website revamp

Page 4 of 7



Director Winn confirmed that the updated plan has been submitted to all required offices, including
the Governor’s Office, and has received full approval. She noted that under Governor Kotek,

compliance with strategic planning requirements is closely reviewed and agencies receive
feedback.

Director Winn added that staff engagement in developing and refining the strategic plan has been
strong.

Chair Doherty emphasized that the Strategic Plan provides a solid roadmap for the Commission’s
work, and Commissioners expressed appreciation for the clarity of the update.

Information Technology Update — Director Winn
Director Winn highlighted that the most significant changes to the Strategic Plan relate to the
licensing database project.

Key Performance Indicators and Commission Self Evaluation

Director Winn presented the Commission’s updated Key Performance Indicators, noting that the
agency previously tracked five measures, however the legislature added new requirements in the
legislative session that just ended.

Director Winn reported the results:

Catastrophic Injuries: The reported numbers looked worse than reality because legislators lowered
the fatality threshold from the industry standard of 1.5 per 1,000 starts to 1.0 per 1,000. Under the
new measure, the Commission appears in the red, though fatalities were down compared to the
prior year.

Equine Drug Testing: Reporting currently shows more positive tests; Winn clarified the metric had
been misapplied to all substances rather than controlled substances. Once corrected, the results
will improve. Expanded testing procedures are helping identify violators.

Injuries: Only three injuries were recorded out of 1,637 starts, exceeding the target and
demonstrating progress, although improved monitoring may account for more accurate reporting.

Licensing Turnaround: Times for licensing turn around are within the recommended time.
Customer Service & Stakeholder Feedback: Broad surveys showed generally high ratings, with
the strongest scores from wagering partners. Lower ratings came from trainers and owners,

reflecting growing pains from stricter standards. The Commission staff are working to improve
communication in this area.

Page 5 of 7



Winn concluded by noting that while some measures look unfavorable on paper, they reflect higher
standards and expanded oversight rather than performance declines.

The discussion concluded with agreement to refine the self-evaluation process and continue
working through the KPM standards with the legislature as needed.

PUBLIC COMMENT:

Randy Boden addressed the Commission, noting the ongoing challenge of communicating
effectively with horsemen when changes occur. He stressed that without reliable channels, updates
risk not reaching all affected parties in time. Randy praised the Commission’s handling of recent
changes, remarking that shifting procedures mid-season would have caused significant disruption.
He highlighted the difficulty of collecting and maintaining accurate contact information, as many

horsemen do not share email addresses or messages bounce back. Randy connected this issue to
broader concerns about attrition in the horse racing industry, underscoring the importance of
consistent communication.

Commissioner Stein suggested that text messaging could serve as a more effective tool for
outreach, pointing to his own experience receiving ongoing race-related updates from other
jurisdictions. Randy acknowledged that texts are sent but emphasized that many horsemen still fail
to check them, reinforcing the communication barrier.

Rod Lowe raised concerns about the administration of non-steroidal anti-inflammatory drugs on
the fair circuit. He explained that while Grants Pass provides race entries several days in advance—
allowing horsemen to manage medication timing—fair meets often finalize entries only 24 hours
prior. This creates difficulty with 48-hour withdrawal requirements and may contribute to
medication overages. Rod stressed that this ongoing issue needs further discussion within the
rulemaking process.

Mike Twiggs stated that the stewards recognize the conflict between 24-hour race entry timelines
and 48-hour medication rules.

Dr. Lombard agreed that the matter warrants further review at the committee level. She indicated
that the data and perspectives shared during public comments would be valuable in shaping future
rulemaking and ensuring differences between fair meets and other venues are properly addressed.

Chair Doherty concluded by reiterating that this is an unresolved issue but emphasized confidence
that the Commission, with input from experienced stakeholders, will move toward a rational and
workable solution.

CONTESTED CASES
None.

Page 6 of 7



EXECUTIVE SESSION:

The ORC entered executive session under ORS 192.660(2)(f), ORS 192.345(2), OAR 462-220-
0070 regarding trade secrets for: Potential new licensees/affiliates and under ORS 192.660 (2)(i)
to conduct the Executive Director’s annual review.

CONFIRMATION OF THE NEXT MEETING:

The next commission meeting is scheduled for Saturday, September 20, 2025, at 1:30 P.M. in
person in the Josephine County Fairgrounds Arts & Crafts Bldg. and remotely via Microsoft
Teams.

ADJOURNMENT:
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 4:17 P.M.

Page 7 of 7



@ HEADCHECK
HEALTH

SUMMARY June 1st 2025 - July 31st 2025

In the first two months of use, the Oregon Racing Commission staff have been demonstrating a strong
commitment to meeting fit-to-ride and concussion protocol requirements.

Organizational compliance is estimated based on the completion of baseline concussion testing, physical/fit-to-ride screens, and signed
forms for each of the 67 jockeys licensed to race with the Oregon Racing Commission.

Concussion compliance is based on the clearance rate for concussive Organizational Concussion Other Injury

injuries.
Other injury compliance reflects the clearance rate for non-concussive
injuries reported in incident reports where a follow-up is required or the 100%
jockey is marked as injured.
Note: Organizational compliance may appear low as it includes all
licensed jockeys, even those who have not yet ridden this season. The
compliance rate also fluctuates monthly as baseline tests and physicals @ @
expire, impacting the overall rolling completion rate.
Organizational Compliance Concussion Compliance
w4
0 ® o ©
Up-to-date Baseline ) .
P 28/67 jockeys - 41.8% concussions received clearance
e : Other Injury Compliance
Up-to-date Physical _ 37.3%

25/67 jockeys

9
Signed Forms _ 32.8% 1 1 ©
22/67 jockeys 07
non-concussive injury received clearance

marked as follow-up/injured

Incidents Reported (4)

@ Eligible @ FollowUp @ Injured

Note: Eligible status indicates that no follow-up was required.

3.0 Injury by Type
Contusion 2

2.5 Dislocation/Subluxation 1
No injury 1
Concussion 0

# of Incidents Reported

June July August September October November December

Month

This report contains confidential and privileged information. Any use, disclosure, copying or dissemination of this information by a person other than an intended recipient is not authorized @

and may be illegal. If you are not an intended recipient, please notify the sender immediately, delete this report, and destroy any copies.



@ HEADCHECK
HEALTH

Incident Data Trends June 1st 2025 - July 31st 2025

Location of Incident Incident by Cause

In stable area

During training (main track) 1

During training (training track) Injured by fall from horse

In paddock
In post parade -
c
Loading into gate %
g In gate S
-g . g £ Impact w/ gate/fence/rail
s Leaving gate 1 5
9 First half of race (not leaving gate) 1 b
>
©
In final turn S
In stretch 1
Galloping out after finish Unknown
Returning to unsaddle
After Race completion
0 1 0 1 2
# of Incidents # of Incidents
Injury by Track Surface When Incidents are Occurring
Dirt - Good Before a Race
Dirt - Muddy g
=
8 Dirt - Sloppy g During a Race
€ Turf-Firm o
3 et
¥ Turf-Good ©
(9]
©  Turf - Yielding € After a Race
= i/
Turf - Soft E
i c
Synthetic 2 During Training
0 2 4 0 1 2 3 4
# of Injuries # of Incidents
Protection Worn
® Yes No @ Unknown
3.0 3
w 25
>
)
X 20
R4
w 15
)
* 10 1
0.5
0.0 .
Body Protection Helmet

Type of Protection

This report contains confidential and privileged information. Any use, disclosure, copying or dissemination of this information by a person other than an intended recipient is not authorized

and may be illegal. If you are not an intended recipient, please notify the sender immediately, delete this report, and destroy any copies.



462-200-0360
Licenses for Other Employees and Officials at the Off-Track Wagering Facility

(1) Allemployees and officials The General Manager (GM) or the Owner, if no GM position is designated,
at the off-track wagering facility shall obtain a license fersuch-employment from the Oregon Racing
Commission as if the individual were performing the duties at a race course.

(2) Unless otherwise prohibited by provisions of statute or these rules, all off track licensees (e.g. owners,
business managers, or employees) may wager at the off-track sites they are connected with, EXCEPT,
under no circumstances, shall any on duty mutuel clerk or mutuel manager wager at such a site.

Statutory/Other Authority: ORS 462.700
Statutes/Other Implemented: ORS 462.700
History:

RC 3-2000, f. 3-27-00, cert. ef. 5-1-00



B An official website of the United States government
Here's how you know

FULL TEXT LINKS

Review J Vet Pharmacol Ther. 1986 Mar;9(1):1-25. doi: 10.1111/j.1365-2885.1986.tb00008 x.

Phenylbutazone in the horse: a review

T Tobin, S Chay, S Kamerling, W E Woods, T J Weckman, J W Blake, P Lees

PMID: 3517382 DOI: 10.1111/j.1365-2885.1986.tb00008.x

Abstract

Phenylbutazone is an acidic, lipophilic, non-steroidal anti-inflammatory drug (NSAID). It is extensively
metabolized in the horse. The metabolites so far identified, oxyphenbutazone, gamma-
hydroxyoxyphenbutazone, account for some 25-30% of administered dose over 24 h. The plasma
half-life of phenylbutazone and termination of its pharmacological action are determined primarily by
its rate of hepatic metabolism. Phenylbutazone acts by inhibiting the cyclooxygenase enzyme system,
which is responsible for synthesis of prostanoids such as PGE2. It appears to act on prostaglandin-H
synthase and prostacyclin synthase, after conversion by prostaglandin-H synthase to reactive
intermediates. It markedly reduces prostanoid-dependent swelling, edema, erythema, and
hypersensitivity to pain in inflamed tissues. Its principal use in the horse is for treatment of soft tissue
inflammation. Phenylbutazone is highly bound (greater than 98%) to plasma protein. After i.v.
injection, blood levels decline with an elimination half-life of 3-10 h. The plasma kinetics of
phenylbutazone may be dose dependent, with the plasma half-life increasing as the drug dosage level
increases. Plasma residues of the drug at 24 h after a single i.v. dose of 2 g/450 kg average about 0.9
microgram/ml, but considerable variation occurs. If dosing is repeated, the plasma residue
accumulates to give mean residual blood levels of approximately 4.5 microgram/ml on Day 5 after 4
days of dosing. Approximately similar blood levels are found after a combination of oral and i.v.
dosing. Experiments on large numbers of horses in training have been undertaken to ascertain the
population distributions of residual blood levels after such dosing schedules. Absorption of
phenylbutazone from the gastrointestinal tract is influenced by the dose administered and the
relationship of dosing to feeding. Access to hay can delay the time of peak plasma concentration to
18 h or longer. Under optimal conditions, the bioavailability of oral phenylbutazone is probably in the
region of 70%. Paste preparations may be more slowly absorbed than other preparations and yield
higher residual plasma levels at 24 h after dosing, but further controlled studies are required.
Phenylbutazone is easily detected in the plasma and urine of horses but concentrations in saliva are
low. It is quantitated for forensic purposes by HPLC. The variability of this method between
laboratories is about +/- 25%. Increasing urinary pH increases the urinary concentration of
phenylbutazone and its metabolites up to 200-fold.(ABSTRACT TRUNCATED AT 400 WORDS)

PubMed Disclaimer

Related information

PubChem Compound (MeSH Keyword)

LinkOut - more resources

Full Text Sources
Wiley



	September 2025 Commission Meeting Agenda
	August 2025 Regular Commission Meeting Minutes Final
	462-200-0360 OTB License Requirements
	Scan_20250825



